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The A. Coolot Company Building is a two-story rectangular brick building, 
built circa 1855-1863, located in the downtown comraerical area of Sacramento. 
The building is 20 feet wide and 1 0 feet long and has a basement which 
provides a third floor. rr-v '?

It is a plain building except for the front which was decorated ca. 1920 with 
Ernest Batchelder arts and crafts tiles of muted earth tones.' The brown tile 
facing is the most striking design feature of the building and its major 
contribution to the streetscape. These arts and crafts tiles surround the 
entry, the second floor windows, and form a cornice on the front wall. The 
twelve inch square molded tiles* form a floral design with a blossom in the 
center, a surrounding circle and oak leaves and vines in the intervening 
spaces. The tile is basicly a subtle earth brown color with a turquoise 
blue glaze rubbed into the design background. On the corners of the entry 
there is a ceramic molding with a vine design and coloring similar to the 
tile facing. The second story windows are surrounded with the same tile arranged 
in quoin fashion. The tiled cornice is made from tiles with a geometric pattern. 
The plaster wall is painted off-white, a color which compliments the tile.

The second story has two rectangular wooden casement windows facing J Street. The 
first floor side walls adjoin the adjacent building on both sides. The second 
floor side walls have rectangular metal casement windows near the rear of the 
building. The building is accessible from the rear by an alley and has a rear 
door and two metal casement windows on the basement level and three framed 
windows each on the first and second floor.

The building's interior shows the many alterations and additions made during 
the past century. The basement was added when the buildings of downtown 
Sacramento were raised between 1863 and 186? after a series of disastrous 
floods. The rear half of the building was added sometime in the late 19th and 
early 20th centuries. In 1886 the second floor of the original building was 
partitioned into additional rooms for the hotel on the adjoining property. 
This portion of the building was closed during the 1920's and was not reopened 
until the recent restoration; consequently, it retains the original hard wood 
doors, wainscoting, and transoms. The present owner has added a staircase 
from the first floor interior to allow access to these second floor rooms 
which are now used for offices. This alteration supplements the already 
appealing division of interior spaces. In the 1920's a bank vault was built 
on the first floor which was used by a number of savings institutions until 
1968. Although there have been many alterations and additions to the original 
building, they do not detract from the building's historic significance; 
rather, they are consistent with the building's significance. Furthermore, 
the present owner is rehabilitating the building and restoring many of its 
19th century interior features.

The tile was authenticated by Dr. Robert Winter of Occidental College, a leading 
authority on Batchelder and the California Arts and Crafts movement.
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The A, Coolot Company Building's 1920's tilework facade is artistically 
significant as a fine example of the influence of the California Arts and Crafts 
movement on a Sacramento commerical building front. Furthermore, the facade 
tilework is the only known example of an artistically significant facade incorporating 

Ernest Batchelder tile in Sacramento, and remains as a unique statement of the Arts 
and Crafts art ethic on the Sacramento streetscape.

It is not known precisely when the A. Coolot Company Building was constructed 
because Sacramento city records for the period 1856-1860 were lost. The 
building was built before 1863* when a local history gives credit to its brick 
construction for preventing the spread of a major fire and saving a portion of 
the city. Records indicate that Leland Stanford, one of the Central Pacific 
Railroad "Big Four" and Governor of California, owned the land. Stanford presumably 
built the Coolot Building and then rented it to Anthony Coolot who opened a 
variety and notion business, which he continued to operate until his death in 1900. 
Coolot expanded his business and eventually established the Young Ladies Segar 
Factory. In 1885 Coolot purchased Stanford's interest in the property and the 
following year concluded an agreement to lease the second story of the Coolot 
Building for hotel rooms. In 1902 the Coolot firm was dissolved and Anthony's 
daughter Clara Diepenbrock assumed ownership of the Coolot Building. Between 
1902 and 1929 Diepenbrock leased the building to several commerical firms.

The Ernest Batchelder tiles were probably added sometime between 1915 and 1925* 
and created a strong artistic statement for that period. The Arts and Crafts 
movement had begun late in the nineteenth century and by 1910 was well 
established in California. The Arts and Crafts ethic, expressed by the 
seminal thinkers of the movement, Thomas Carlyle, John Ruskin and William 
Morris, held that art was a necessity of life and that ideally even the 
mundane objects necessary to life should bear the mark of the craftsman's 
hand. Further, the Arts and Crafts adherents believed the craftsman should 
pursue their individual aesthetic ideal. This ethic admitted a wide range of 
styles and techniques in virtually every creative field.
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The ceramics master, Ernest Batchelder was one of the finest California craftsmen. 
Batchelder specialized in exquisitely handcrafted ceramic tiles which often incorpo­ 
rated California scenes and plant forms. Batchelder*s motto was "no two tiles the 
same". He was born in Nashua, New Hampshire, in l8?5, and educated at the Massachusetts 
Normal Art School. Batchelder wrote two books on design theory, The Principles of 
Design (190*0, and Design in Theory and Practice (1910). From 190*t to 1909 Batchelder 
was Director of Art at the Throop Polytechnic Institute. He also taught at the 
Handcraft Guild Summer Schools in Minneapolis. In 1905 Batchelder visited the centers 
of the Arts and Crafts movement in England. In 1909 he established his Pasadena kiln 
and began turning out the tiles which are now famous. His tile business experienced 
great success and expanded until the Great Depression when it failed. Until that 
time Batchelder turned out beautiful handCmade tiles like the handsome ones which 
adorn the Coolot Building. The tiles on the Coolot Building incorporate the Cali­ 
fornia floral patterns and brown and blue tones which are the Batchelder trademarks. 
Batchelder tiles have become renowned among art collectors and are highly prixed 
collector's items when they are found.

The pressHt owner, Dan Mallicoat, is rehabilitating the Coolot Building and 
restoring many of its 19th century and early 20th century features including the 
arts and crafts tile. Mallicoat intends to lease the building for office and 
alternative uses, which will not substantially disturb the pleasing division of 
spaces on the building's historic significance.

Many of the surrounding buildings were also constructed during the 19th Century, 
although some of their facades have been "modernized" and covered with stucco and 
panels. Several adjacent property owners have expressed interest in restoring their 
historic buildings and thus eliminating some of the contemporary facades which are 
historically incompatible.
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Batchelder, Ernest, Design in Theory and Practice (New York: The MacMillam
Company, 1910). 

Anderson, Timothy J., Eudorah M. Moore, Robert W. Winter, eds., California
Design 1910 (California Design Publications, 197*0.
Correspondence and telephone conversations with Dr. Robert Winter, Department
of History, Occidental Colege, January 19?8.


